
REPUBLIC 0F KENYA

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR.GENERAT

Enhancing Accountabil ity

REP

PARLIA M E NT
O P KENYA
LI B RAIiY

THE AUDITOR-GENERAL

ON

AMBWENI COUNTY REFERRAL HOSPITAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE,2023

DATE

TABLED BY

COMIvIITTEE

CLERK AT THE TABLE

.'1')y
,l

PAPERS LAID

COUNTY GOVERNMBNT OF KWALE

\

t-

OJ



I

l0FItctI P.O.B
Of T;II
ox 952a2

IIDITOR
,MOMEASA

t,INEflII

REC EIVIJD
MO MBAS.4 R E(il0rlnL OFFICE

Msambweni County Referral Hospital Level 5 HOSPITAL
(Kwale County Government)

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FoR THE YEAR ENDED 3o''*t JUNE 2023

repared in accordance rvith the Accrual Basis ofAccounting Method under the International Public Sector
Accounting Standards (IPSAS)

D

a
t{ e€AR Ait I".'l' 

,:

a.

1 ; rl,P /li+

\

u\v
,wr

{r.r/



t.

t



,

!t

Msambweni County Referral Hospilal (Kh,ole County Government)
Annual Report and Financial Stotements for The Year Endett 3dh June 2023

Table of Contcnts

1. Acronyms & Glossary of Terms ...............u

2. Key Entity lnformation and Management............. ............................ iii

3. The Board of Mana9ement................ ........vi

4. Key Management Team......... .....................ix

5. Chairman's Statement.................... .............x

6. Report of The Medical Superintendent................ ........xi

7. Statement of Performance Against Predetermined Objectives.............. .........xii

8. Corporate Governance Statement.................. ........... xiii

9. Management Discussion and Analysis ......................xv

10. Environmental And Sustainability Reportin9................... ............xix

ll.Reportof The Board of Management............... .......xxii

l2.Statement of Board of Management's Responsibilities ......... xxiii

f 3. Report of the Independent Auditor (specify entity name).......... ...................xxiv

l4.Statement of Financial Performance for The Year Ended 30 June 2023 .............................1

l5.Statement of Financial Position As At 30th June 2023.. ................3

l6.Statement of Changes in Net Asset for The Year Ended 30 June 2023 ...............................5

lT.Statement of Cash FIows for The Year Ended 30 June 2023............ ....,...........6

18. Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts for Year Ended 30 Jun 223..8

19. Notes to the Financial Statements ....... 10



A uul R 2023

& Glossary of Terms

of all acronyms and glossary of terms used in the preparation of this reporl e.g

Corporate Social Responsibility

Occupational Health & Safety Act

Public Financial Management Act
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Fiduciary
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Medical Superintendent

Key management personnel who have financial responsibility in the

entity.
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Msombweni County Referral Hospilol (Kwale County Government)
Annual Reporl ond Finonciol Statementsfor The Year Entled 3dt' June 2023

2. Key Entity Information and Management

(a) Background information

Msambweni County Referral Hospital is a level (5) hospital established under gazette
(supplement No.6) legal notice number 3 dated 25th January 2017 and is domiciled in
Kwale County under the Health Department. The hospital is governed by a Board of
Management.

(b) Principal Activities

The principal activity ofthe hospital is to provide health care services

Vision
The hospital ofchoice in provision ofhealth care in Kenya and beyond

Mission
To promote and provide quality acceptable, accessible, Affordable and timely health care
services to all in a conducive environment.

Values
Observe professional ethics
Respect and honest to all patients/clients
Foster team work among staff
Recognize collaboration and team work with other stakeholder

(c) Key Management

The hospital's management is under the following key organs
- County department of health
- Board of Management
- Accounting Officer/ Medical Superintendent
- Management

(d) Fiduciary Management

The key management personnel who held office during the financial year ended 30th June

2023 and who had direct fiduciary responsibility were:

(Include all po.sitions regarded as lop management in your hospital)

Francis NdiegeI Hospital Director

Halima NgomeHospital Accountant

Pauline NerimaJ Head of supply chain

4
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Ms bweni County Referral Hospital (Kwale County Government)

An ual Reporl a Financial Statements for The Year Ended 3dh June 2023

(e) Fiduciary Oversight Arrangements

Clinical Research and Standards Committee.
t committee activities
primary purpose of a hospital's audit committee is to provide oversight of the financial reporting

ess the audit process, the hospital's system of intemal controls and compliance with laws and

re8 atlons

A
1'h
pro

t'h

1'h

Id

hos ital financial obligations.
committee erlsures books of account are well prepared in accordance with PFM ACT and acceptable

.s d,

Ap roving and signing of budgets according to absorption's capacities of the absorption's capacity of
dc ents)

Finance colnmittee activities
role of the fidance committee is primarily to provide short- and long-term financial oversight for the

Environment committee activity
are responsible for analysing and resolving Environment of Care issues.

ify and generate improvement opportunities and process change to facilitate the safety, security, and

co ort of patients and their
dentify the priority

social environment. Establish and maintain risk assessment and evaluation
of performance improvements and process changescn atol

Health Committee Activities
'th r roles and responsibilities generally relate to identifying and addressing health issues within the

co unity, as well as supporting CHWs and/or other volunteer health cadres

. Risk Committee

. County Assembly

. Parliamentarycommittees

. Other oversight committees

Key Entity lnformation and Management (continued)

(0 Entity Headquarters

P.O. Box 8
Msambweni hospital
Mombasa Lungalunga road
Kwale, Kenya

(g) Entity Contacts

lv

Telephone: (+254) 01 1 1 781 852
E-mail : msambwenihosp@gmail.com
Website: www.go.ke
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(h) Entity Bankers

Kenya Commercial Bank
Ukunda Branch
P.o Box 48400-00100
Nairobi

(D Independent Auditors

Auditor General
Office of Auditor General
Anniversary Towers, Institute Way
P.O. Box 30084
GPO 00100
Nairobi, Kenya

CI) Principal Legal Adviser

The Attomey General
State Law Office
Harambee Avenue
P.O. Box 40112
City Square 00200
Nairobi, Kenya

(k) County Attorney

P.O. Box. 4, 80403
Kwale, Kenya

Msambweni County Referral Hospital (Kwale County Government)

Annuol Report ond Financiol Statements for Tlte Yeor
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HUSSEINJUMA MGUNGA

Msambweni County Referral Hospital Board Chairman

Date of Birth ;1210811972
Educational carrier
Eshuprimary school 1979+o-1986 Eshu primary
School
Secondary school 1987-to-1990 Shimba Hills High
School

Colleees attended

Clearing and forwarding Certificate 199 I april to Oct I 99 I

Kenya institute of Cl. And Forwarding

Computer science Certificate 5th Jan 1995 to 3 I 'r July
1995 Aries Data system
Professional Drivin

I
An ual Report
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3. The Board of Management

FRANCIS NDIEGE

DIRECTOR- MSAMBWENI COTJNTY REFERRAL

HOSPITAL

Degree in Forestry-Korsholms Skogslaroanstalt,

Vasa Finland - Ag. Director

1995-99 Assistant DFO - Meru District, 1999-2000- DFO-

Tharaka District, 2000-2002, Manager -Wakuluzu Friends of

the Colobus Trust-Diani, 2005-2008 Product Manager (EA)-

Camp Kenya Limited, 2008-2015- today- Technical Lead-

Ozone Eco-Solutions, 2015-2017- Political & Poticy Advisor

-Office of Govemor- Kwale County, 2018- Nov 2022- M &

E Advisor - Governor's Service Delivery UnirKwale

County.

Experience and skills in Management, Strategic Planning,

policy development, Monitoring and Evaluation both in the

public and the private sector. Further skills in resource

mapping, Participatory Methodologies, Community

Mobilization, Proposal writing/Fund raising skills, Report

Writing, Product Research and Development

Basel ine surveys, feasibil ity studies, Business Planning.
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license KilimanjaroDrivingSchool
Foreign language (French) Certificate still
schooling Allais French School
Mount Kenya University Diploma in Community
Development Jan2017 to 6/4/2018

Mount Kenya university Bachelor's of
Development studies 2018 2023
Workine expenence
The Mombasa hospital Accounts clerk Feb I 992

To Oct 1996
Soweto general hospital Accountant l" Nov.I996 to
Dec.200l
Peacock Tours and safaris Accountant/General
manager 5Feb 2002-l lrHDec2002
Lipi Adventure Company Operations Director l5rH Dec

2003 to Date
Trails of EAST Africa Safaris Ownerl5rH Dec 2008 to Date

J
THOMAS NGULI

COMMUNITY LEADER

4

I I

ABDALLAH GWADZIKO

MR. Abdalla Gwadziko has experience in community

work within and outside Msambweni areas.

5
MWAKAJE HAMZA

Board Member
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6
AMANI MAZURI

Board Member

IMANI KEA

Board Member

DASI HASSAN

Board Member
8

9
NEHE,MIA KINYWA

Board Member
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FATUMA OMAR MAZURI

Board Member
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4. Key Management Team

1

HANIFA MWARORA

NURSING MANAGER

2

HALIMA NGOME

ACCOUNTANT
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FRANCIS IYDIEGE

DIRECTOR- MSAMBWENI COI.]NTY REFERRAL

HOSPITAL
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. Chairmads Statement
e this opportrnity to present to you the achievements, challenges and the future outlook of the

ho iral

'fh Ilospital has

Inrprovcd

Reverse osrnosis

Relocationof the Matemity wing

hospital has

tion

the following challenges;

Construc of Mortuary Waiting bay

J"ni"u"a the following success during my tenure of service

f,*n,,"

de cnt

S

resource- the hospital has shortage of staff especially nursing and Radiology departments and

ly very few s{RRortine

of water purlfi"ution plant- the hospital lacks clean water thus making it difficult to run a renal unit

ty - the hospital lacks driven security personnel

te system 't'he bio

hospital

gas system is overflowing

ge - The need a store to keep most scatted unused items and even the scrap vehicles in the

ital compo

EUe

are

are

outlook

set to eng{ge private security company for security measures

looking fofward to get more staff from the County Govemment
l

hoping to let more finances from the Head quarter for Hospital running expenditures

are looking ard to change the filling system of the hospital from manual to digital so as to save

e and fbr eas reference of patient' s informationS

Th

Th

Th

Th

S

S

hospital is I ing forward to install water purification planl

a Health Administrator

urgent face lifting

strategies leading it to its facilities making it efficient for level 5

hospital need

hospital need

hospital need S

Namc

D.ah.r:.

x

t

il
l:Lrtt

\\'c

\\'c

\\'e

\\'e

Srr$rr(



Msambweni County Refenol Hospilal (Kwale County Government)
Annual Reporl and Financial Slatementsfor The Year Ended 3dh June 2023

Chairman to the Board

6. Report of The Medical Superintendent/ Hospital Director

It is my pleasure to present Msambweni County Referral Hospital (MCRH) financial

Statements for the year ended 30th June 2023. The statement presents the financial performance of the

hospital for the past year.

The right to health is a fundamental human right guaranteed in the Constitution of Kenya.

Article a3 (l) (a) ofthe Constitution provides that every person has the right to the highest

Attainable standard of health, which includes the right to health care services, including

Reproductive health care.

Financing of the hospital

The equitable share for the Counties from the National Govemment forms part of the revenues the

hospital uses to operationalize its activities. The County government also finances the operations of

Msambweni County Referral Hospital through own generated revenues. The law

Does not allow revenue collected to be used at source therefore revenues (receipts from

Patients) collected by the hospital are remitted to the County Treasury.

Other sources of include aid from development partners inform of equipments

Name

Secretary to the Boa

_/,c

xl

o
.......4

%ru



tuIs

An
mbweni Co
ual Reporl

unty Referral Hospital (Kwa
and Financial Statemenls fo

le County Governmenl)
r The Yeor Ended 3dh June 2023

7. Statement of Performance Against Predetermincd Objectives

ST TEMENT O PERFORMANCE AGAINST PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES
Du n ear the Hos ital achieved the set rformance ta cts r strate lc illar as shown below

Cu tomer:Aimed at customer and stakeholdcr

lr Operationdl level 2 theatre
L Introductiur of CT scan services
I

I Constructign of the Mortuary Waiting Bay

I which is orf-going.

bEx ansion ofthe Laborato Buildin

Msambweni County Referral Hospital has strategic pillars/ themes/issues and objectives within

the current Strategic Plan for the FY 2022- FY 2023. These strategic pillars/ themes/ issues are as

follows:

Pillar /theme/issue I :

Pillar/theme/issue 2:

Msambweni County Referral Hospital develops its annual work plans based on the above

pillars/Thernes/Issues. Assessment of the Board's performance against its annual work plan is

done on a quarterly basis. The Msambweni County Referral Hospital achieved its performance

targets set for the FY 202212023 period for its strategic pillars, as indicated in the diagram below:

Intemal processes-Concemed with the processes

that create and deliver the customer value
proposition.

Financial: Whether the hospital financial status has

improve
o Introduction of Pay bill method of revenue

collection has increased the revenue

collected.

Pillar/ theme/ issue

I

Pillar/ thcme/ issuc

I

xll

_t

the

'Orlanizational Capacity: The level of an
<lrglnization's capability to deliver services that
notlonly satisfy the present customer

- 
exlectations, but continually anticipate future
op{ortunities

rl

satffaction
b Theatre utilization atgjYo
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Annual Report and Financial Statementsfor The Year Ended 3dh June 2023

8. Corporate Governance Statement

The board was appointed on 2nd May 2023 as per gazette notice no 5657 and at the end of the financial
year 202212023 the hospital board had conducted I board meeting.
Member's presents were;

1. Hassan Mgunga
2. Amani Mazuri
3. Thomas Nguli
4. Hassan Dasi
5. Nehemiah Kinywa
6. Fatuma Omar Mazuri
7. Imani Keya
8. Mwakaje Hamza Boga
9. Abdallah Gwadziko

- Board Chairman
- Member
- Member
- Member
- Member
- Member
- Member
- Member
- Member

Succession Planning -
Succession planning is a process of recognizing and preparing new leaders who can take the leadership
roles and replace the old leaders once they leave due to retirement, resignation, promotion, transfer, or
death.

The member shall vacate his /her position on the committee in the following;
. If a member is absent without apology and reasonable explanation from 3 consecutive meeting of

the committee
o If in the case of a member of non-governmental organisation, the member ceases to hold the

office by virtue of which his nomination was made.
o If a member convicted of a criminal offence.
. If a member ceases to reside or practise in the area of hospital jurisdiction
o If a member voluntarily resigns from the committee
o If a member deceased
o If a member involved in gross conflict of interest and the committee recommend to the minister

Membership
In accordance with the legal Notice No 155 of October 2009, the HMC membership shall be as follows:

a) There shall be at least seven (7) and not more than nine (9) members of the committee appointed
by the minister.

b) A member of the committee, apart from the ex-officio, shall hold office for a period of three (3)
years and shall be eligible for appointment for one ( I ) further term

c) A person shall not be appointed as a member of the committee unless that person holds at least a
O-level certificate of education or its equivalent.

d) To the extent feasible, committee members should ride or work in the hospital service area

xlll
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Co pos tio n

fh total membershi
shall consist of;an

Approve
Ensuring

Functions

Co

p f rhc c shao omm ttcc bc east Seven 7) and not more than nlnc (9 mcmbersta (

) A chairperson nominated by members of the committee from among themselves and appointed by

the minister

) The area provincial commissioner or his/her (level5 hospital) District medical services officer
(level4 hoqpital) or his /her representative duly nominated by him/her in writing.

) The area provincial director of medical services (level5) district medical (level5) district medical

services officer (level4) or his/her representative duly nominated by him/her in writing.

) The person in charge ofthe hospital who shall be the secretary

) The person in charge ofa local authority provincial/district or sub-district

R LES
the work plan prepared by the facilities
equitable distribution of resources to the medical facilities

) Reviewing and approving annual expenditure statements

) The legal
respective

Notice No 255 of October 2009 spells out the core function of the HMC at the

level as the following:
To supervise and control the administration of the fund allocated to a provincial district or sub-

district hospital;
To open aod operate a bank account at a bank to be approved by the minister for the time being

responsible for finance
To prepare work plan based on estimated expenditure
To cause tO be kept book ofaccounts ofand record ofaccounts ofthe income, expenditure, assets

and liabilides of the hospital.
To prepare and submit certified periodic financial and performance report at prescribed

To cause to be kept a permanent record ofall deliberations.

Responsibiilties
Overseeing hospital performance improvements
Participatiilg in planning for the hospital
Mobilizing resources
Overseein$ the function operations of the hospital
Ensuring dpvelopment of hospital human resources
Ensuring c[mmunities' right are fulfilled and their needs are adequately met
Maintainirfu a positive public image
Ensuring cpmpliance with environmental regulations and standards

Ensuring ei<ternal relationship and partnerships
Mitigate potential conflict of interest.
Risk Management

xlv
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9. Management Discussion and Analysis

ClinicaVoperational performance

- Bed capacity of the hospital-247
- Overall patient attendance during the year for both inpatient-6,886 and outpatient-45,7O8

- Specialised clinic attendance- 12,096

Specialized clinics attendances is as follows

l. Sopc- 1,924
2. Ent- 518
3. Orthopadic- 342
4. Psychiatric- 571

5. Popc- 1034
6. Mopc-3213
7. Dermatology-1425
8. Gopc/Hrc-1698
9. Eye-818
10. Renal - 488
1 1. Oncolory- 65

xv
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- Average length ofstay for in patient- 6 days
- Bed occupancy rate92o/o
- Mortality rate- 14o/o

- Surgical theatre utilisation (number of operations over a period of time) - 1,381

- Sponsorships and partnerships;
- Stawisha Pwani
- National Govemment
- Equity Bank
- Base Titanium
- Kemsa

45
hospital wards bed capacity

36 36

35

25

2l

20

15 13

10

40
40

30

36

6

5

I,'rll
0

Male medical Male surgica I

xvll

ICU NBU

The facility has bed capacity of as per the below charts and the management is working well with the

county focal persons to ensure the hospital increases its capacity through more structures for the better

services

Female ward Paeds ward Maternity ward

a beds t incubators
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attendance for the financial year 2022-2023 for both outpatient and inpatient were

,886 respectively, these totals are for female, male, under five years, over five years,

year the facility emerged to conduct specialised clinics totallingto 12,096

t attendance during the year for both inpatient and out patient

orTnance that includes

year ended 30th June 2023,the hospital received receipts in form oftransfers from
ounty Govemment of KShs . 2,7 45,932 and In kind contributions from the County

ent of Khs 494,782,120

yments

total ex nditure for the year amounted to KShs. 486,715,566

tmbweni Coua
tual Report on

NUMBERSTIENT ATTT]NDANCE
7,228Under 5years Female
8,072Under 5years Male
15,410Over 5years Female
n,526Over 5years Male
3,47260+ vears

TOTAT,S 45,708

dTIENT ATTENDANCE
902,dmissions Under 5years

5,984\dmissions Over 5years
6,886TOTALS

12,096cialised clinicsS

Overall patie

45,708 and (

sixty plus ag

For the same

Overall patie

Financial pe!

Revenue I

. tn ill
the I
o",l

I. r)l

Director

Signature

Sccrctary to

/a,

a 'l'he

he Board

(/,)

xvlll

's,lIltt

D RE IOR

Name: .
I 60404



Msambweni Co
Annual Reporl

unty Referral Hospital (Kwale County Government)
and Financial Statementsfor The Year Ended 3dh June 2023

a

a

a

a

a

10. Environmental And Sustainability Reporting

i) Sustainability strategy and profile

Msambweni County Referral Hospital exists to transform lives. It's what guides us to deliver our

strategy, putting the client/Citizen first, delivering health services, and improving operational

excellence. Below is an outline of the organisation's policies and activities that promote

sustainability.

Typically, facilities managers are expected to oversee a range of services, including but not limited
to:

Setting up and organizing routine upkeep and building repairs

Dealing with legal or contractual issues (with clients and outside vendors)

Offering clients the proper amenities and equipment

Utilizing space management to make sure residents are content and secure

The hospital has made its effort by and is in the process of installing a reverse osmosis plant at

the facility.

Her Excellency Govemor Fatuma Achani ensures health facilities in Kwale County receives

enough resources for smooth delivering of services to Msambweni residents and its environs

being a referral hospital.

Political instability is the situation where most facilities Eue not working well due external

forces from politicians, there may be a situation where a politician's pushes can push a waiver

where it does not apply

xlx

a

Complying with regulations on health and safety.

Ensuring the safety of the area.
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ii) Enviro{mental performance

The hospith has engaged in planting trees and flowers around the hospital which prevents soil

erosion.
Ensures hf spital operations are in compliance with environmental laws and regulation with

I

regards to disposal of medical wastes and endeavour to encourage environmental conservation

with the hdsoital and its environs.t'
The managiement has functional incinerator at the facility to cub environment pollutions.

iii) Empl{yee welfare

'lhe p{ocess of employment is has been guided by the Act, employment is being based on

gende4 based and free and fair selection.

The mfinagement has a policy of training its employees when there is a need for that and sent

them tp refresher courses,

Staffs lare being appraised as part of policy of the facility which makes employees to see

themsglves as part of the organisation.
I

fhe f#ility is complying with the ActOf 2007 (OSI{A)

iv) fUa{ket place practices-

We ensure the market is free from irregularities, through that the hospital management is

working hard to ensure make fare on that

I

The oreariisation should outline its efforts to:

a) Re{ponsible competition practice.

n-onJ the core value of the facility is that, we should keep the environment free from

.o*rr[on, and any person involved in comrption issues, legal actions should take against that

Ipersoni

Ibl Repnsible Supply chain and supplier relations

The l+ility ensures therc are fare selection of bidders at the time of purchasing goods, and

scrvict and also ensures paymcnt are paid promptly and accordingly to make suppliers sec

thems{ves as part of the organisation

nsib le mar ketin g and adve rtise me nl

about the competitors in the market and there is high level of positive ethical issues

within the hospital. for that we appreciate the management

c) Respo

Wc care

xx



Msambweni County Referral Hospilal (Kteole County Government)
Annual Reporl and Financial Statementsfor The Year Ended 3dn June 2023

d) Product stewardship

We safeguard consumers' rights; our consumers are mostly patients and we ensurc tnost of the

time great care is taken on them.

v) Corporate Social Responsibility / Community Engagements

I'he hospital carried the following social responsibility during the year;

L Healthcare, The hospital carries out outreaches to community so has to get more children to be

immunized. Reaching out to patient in their homes to do physiotherapy

2. Education- The public health officers reaching out to communities and educate them on the
importance of having toilets, importance washing hands, importance of maintaining cleanliness
while selling street foods, providing information to the public for any infectious disease.

4. Staff training and development, the hospital has a lot of training programmes through seminars,
cmes.

5. The hospital provides health workers with study leaves which help them to increase knowledge,

6. Water and sanitation initiatives-The hospital has involved itself in providing clean water through
the installation of clean water tanks for patients to use.

7. Waiver
There are some patients at the hospital with financial constraints that cannot pay for their hospital
bills, and then this is done in order to allow many citizens accessing health facilities.

8. Under five years ' . ,
The hospital decided free ofcharge sepvices forrthe under five years ofage so as to enable each

child get treatment without any challenggy .."
t. .

Impact of CSR To The Society

l. The community has adopted the culture of building toilets in every household.
2. Through staff training and development the hospital has witnessed the growth of qualified staff

thus enhancing patient's confidence.
3. The community has secured jobs in the hospital and these jobs have improved their standards of

living through the salaries eamed.

xxl
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3. Environment-The hospital has engaged in planting trees and flowers around the hospital which
prevents soil erosion.
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Msambweni County Referral Hospital (Kwole County Governmenl)
Annual Reporl and Financiol Statements for The Year Entled 3dh June 2023

12. Statement of Board of Management's Responsibilities

Section 164 of the Public Finance Management Act,2012 requires the Board of Management to
prepare financial statements in respect of that hospital, which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs ofthe hospital at the end ofthe financial yearlperiod and the operating results ofthe hospital
for that yearlperiod. The Board of Management is also required to ensure that the hospital keeps
proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial position of the
entity. The council members are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the hospital.

The Board of Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the hospital's hnancial
statements, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the hospital for and as at the end of
the financial year (period) ended on June 30, 2023. This responsibility includes: (i) maintaining
adequate financial management arrangements and ensuring that these continue to be effective
throughout the reporting period, (ii) maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the entity, (iii) designing, implementing and
maintaining intemal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements, and ensuring that they are free from material misstatements, whether due to error or
fraud, (iv) safeguarding the assets ofthe hospital; (v) selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies, and (vi) making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Board of Management accepts responsibility for the hospital's financial statements, which have

been prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements

and estimates, in conformity with Intemational Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS), and in the
manner required by the PFM Act,2012 and (- entities should quote applicable legislation as indicated
under). The Board members are of the opinion that the hospital's financial statements give a true and

fair view ofthe state ofhospital's transactions during the financial year ended June 30, 2023, and ofthe
hospital's financial position as at that date. The Board members further confirm the completeness of the

accounting records maintained for the hospital, which have been relied upon in the prcparation of the
hospital's financial statements as well as the adequacy of the systems of internal financial control.

Nothing has come to the attention of the Board of management to indicate that the hospital will not
remain a going concem for at least the next twelve months from the date of this statement.

Approval of the financial statements

The l{ospital
its behalfby:

's financial statements were approved by the Board
" 
aq\.6lrlaq and signed on

Name: t\ D.W Namc: ./
Chairpers 0n Accounting O tccr
Board of Management

xxlll
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PREAMBL

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts

A. Report the Financial statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fai presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accoun ng standards and relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect on
the fina cial statements

B. Report n Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of public Resources which considers
complia ce with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guideli and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Government
achie value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purposes

C. Report n Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which nsiders how the entity has checks and balances to guide internal operations
This re onds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk management
envrron nt and the internal controls, developed and implemented by those charged
with go nance for orderly, efficient and effective operatio ns of the entity

An unmodi opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant I and regulations, and that its internal controls, risk management and
governan systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the flnancial
year under vtew

F THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON MSAMBWENI COUN TY REFERRAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2O2g - COUNTY GOVERNMENT OF

parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statuto ry roles and
s of the Auditor-General by Article 22g of the Constitutio n, the Public
agement 4ct,2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of the
read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT N THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qualified pinion

I have aud

The three
responsibil
Finance M n
report, wh

Hospital - oun
the accompanying financial statements of Msambweni county Referral
ty Government of Kwale set out on pages 1 to 55 which comprise of the

Report of the ditor-General on Msambweni county Referral Hospital for the year ended 30 June, 2023 - County
Governmenl lvu

<-/



statement of financial position as at 30 June, 2023 and the statement of financial I

rrru:x*;iltnal:"T::,',Tl#Jft:":':,"i1i:T,1["Jffi :J:]:?:,*1T,"3lo
"igr,6ffit 

accounting-plii.i"" and other explanatory information in accordance with the

;;ild"; ot Artu" iis otthe Constitution of renyi and Section.35 of the Public Audit

iJ, iois. t have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of my

lno*f"Og" and belief' were necessary for the purpose of the audit'

ln my opinion, except for the effect of the mafters described in the basis for qualified

opinion section ot ,V i"port,-tne financial statements present fairly, in all material

i.Lp"Jr, 
-gre 

tinanctlr p5"itiln of Msambweni County Referral Hospital - County

Government of Kwale as at 30 June, 2023 and of its financial performance and its cash

flows for the year then ended, in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting

Standards (Accrual e""i.i 
";O 

comply with.the Public Finance Management Act' 2012'

the County Government Acl,2012 and Health Acl'2017 '

The statement of financial position reflects Kshs.Nil comparable total assets' However'

review of the previor";;;Jiliieo rinanciar statements reflects comparable total assets

balance of Kshs.g33,iSg. rurtn"r, the statement of financial position reflects property'

plant and equipment o"r"n"" of Kshs.11,642,885 as disclosed in Note 31 to the financial

statements.However,thebalancedoesnotincludehospital'sproperty,plantand
equipmentofundetermin"ou,r,"comprisingland,buildings,motorvehiclesandother
specialized equiPment.

lnthecircumstances,theaccuracyand.completenessofbalancesinthefinancial
statements for the year enOeO 30 June' 2023 could not be confirmed'

2. Unconfirmed lnventory Balance

The statements of financial position reflect Kshs.Nil inventory balance as disclosed in

Note 30 to the financial statements. However,1n"r" was no evidence of conducting the

annual stock take to contir. the quantities, value and status of closing inventory balances

Basis for Qualified OPinion

1. lnaccuracies in the Financial Statements

as at the end of the Year

ln the circumstances, the accuracy, completeness and valuation of Kshs'Nil inventory

balance could not be confirmed'

3. Variances in Receivables from Exchange Transactions

The statement of financial position ryflecll receivables from exchange transactions

batance of Kshs.Nit ";;;.[;Jln 
Note zg to the financial statements' The amount

relatestoduesfromtnerl"tion"rHealthlnsuranceFund(NHIF)whoserecordsindicate

Report of the Auditor-General on M s am bw e n i C ou ntY Referra

Governmenl of Kwale

t Hospitat for the year ended 30 June' 202j - CountY
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ln the circumstances, the accuracy, completeness and recoverability of the trade
receivables balance from exchange transactions of Kshs.Nil amounts could not be
confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the Msambweni County Referral Hospital
Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other
ethical requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I

believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for my qualified opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, and based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on LaMulness
and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, I confirm that, nothing
else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been
applied lawfully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

1. Deficiencies in lmplementation of Universal Health Coverage (UHC)

Review of Hospital records and interviews on verification of services offered,
equipment used and medical specialists in the Hospital at the time of audit revealed
that the Hospital did not meet the requirements of Kenya Quality Model for Health
Policy Guidelines due to staff deficits by 89 staff requirements or 48o/o of the

r authorized establishment.

Report of the A ditor-General on Msambweni County Referral Hospital for the year ended 30 June, 202 3 - County
Government of Kwale
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a balance of Kshs.18,256,650 resulting to an unexplained variance of
Kshs.18,256,650. Further, the amount has been outstanding for more than twelve (12)
months while the contract between the Hospital and NHIF indicates the period to pay
genuine claims is within 30 days of submission.



Staff Requirements
Level5
Standard

Number
in
Hospital Variance

Percentage
%

Medical officers 50 29 58

Anesthesiologists 6 0 100

General surgeons 4 3 1

Gynecologists 4 3 1 75

Pediatrics 4 2 2 50

Radiologists 1 3 25

Kenya Registered
Community Health Nurses

10 45 55 45

Total '172 83 89 48

ln addition, the hospital lacked the necessary equipment and machines outlined in
the Health Policy Guidelines as detailed below;

Service

Level5
Hospital
Standard

Actuals
In the
Hospital Variance

Percentage
oa

Beds 50 282 43.6

Resuscitaire (2 in Labor & 1

in Theatre)
0 2 100

New Born Unit lncubators 10 7 3 70

New Born Unit Cots 7 6 1 85.7

Functional ICU Beds 12 6 6 50

High Dependency Uni
BedsHDU

12 3 I 25

Renal Unit With at Least
5 Dial sis Machines

5 6 -1 120

Two Functional
Operational Theatres-
Maternity & General

7 2 5 28.9

These deficiencies contravene the First Schedule of Health Act,2017 and imply

that accessing the highest attainable standard of health, which includes the right

to health care services, including reproductive health care as required by Article

43(1) of the Constitution of Kenya, 2010 may not be achieved'

ln the circumstances, the Hospital may not be able to deliver on its mandate.

2. Staff Under Establishment
Review of records and analysis of healthcare staffing revealed that the hospital did have

in place 280 staff against the staff establishment requirement of 835 staff leading to a
shortage of 555 staff as at 30 June, 2023'

Report of the Auditor-General on Msambweni County Referral Hospital for lhe year ended 30 June'
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ln the circumstances, the effectiveness on service delivery at Msambweni County
Referral Hospital could not be confirmed.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on
internal controls, risk management and governance section of my report, I confirm that,
nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that internal controls, risk
management and governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

1. Revenue Collection System

The Hospital implemented a point-of-sale system for revenue collection with payments
being made through Mpesa Pay-bill. However, the daily and monthly revenue reports
were not generated using lntegrated Hospital lnformation Management System. As a
result, the revenue billing was not mapped to the hospital tariffs and charges in the
Hospital lnformation Management System which can give a trail for the generation of
revenue billing reports so as to establish the revenue earned.

ln the circumstances, the effectiveness of internal controls designed in the revenue
collection could not be confirmed.

2. Failure to Maintain Fixed Assets Register

The statement of financial position reflects balances of Kshs.11,642,885 in respect to
property, plant and equipment as disclosed in Note 31 to the financial statements.
However, it was noted that the Hospital does not maintain fixed assets register to control
its assets. This is contrary to Regulation 136(1) of the Public Finance Management
(County Government) Regulations,2015 which states that the Accounting Officer shall
be responsible for maintaining a register of assets under his or her control or possession
as prescribed by the relevant laws. ln addition, there was no evidence to show that the
fund has ever evaluated its assets to ascertain the correct market values.

Report of the Auditor-General on Msambweni County Referrol Hospital for the year ended 30 June, 202 3 - County
Governmenl of Kwale
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The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.



I
ln the circumstances, the existence of an effective mechanism to safeguard assets
could not be confirmed and Management was in breach of the regulations.

3. Lack of lnformation Communication Technology (lCT) and Risk Management
Policies

During the year under review, there was no approved Risk Management Policy and
lnformation Communication Technology (lCT) policies.

ln the circumstances, the effectiveness of internal controls built around having an ICT and
risk management policy could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether processes
and systems of internal controls, risk management and governance were operating
effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Management

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with the lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards
(Accrual Basis) and for maintaining effective internal controls as Management determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control, risk management and governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Hospital's ability to sustain services, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Hospital or to cease its operations.

Management is responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the Auditor-
General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of lhe Public Audit Act, 2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activitres, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

The Board of Management is responsible for overseeing the Hospital's financial reporting
process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with

relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and

systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance

Report of the Auditor-General on Msambweni County Referral Hospilal for theyear ended 30 June, 2023 - County

Governmenl of Kwale
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and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control
environment

I Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
I statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
i 
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

In addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, rlsk management and governance processes and systems in
accordancewiththeprovlsionsof SectionT(1)(a)ofthePublicAuditAct,20l5andsubmit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal controls would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal controls that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal controls components does
not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal controls may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSA|s, I exercise professionaljudgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

Report of the Au(itor-General on Msambweni County Referral Hospital for the year ended 30 June, 202j - County
Government of l$tale

lt



a ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from

fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

a Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Hospital's
ability to continue to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty exists,

I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My

conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit

report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Hospital to cease to
continue to sustain its services.

r Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

r Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and

business activities of the Hospital to express an opinion on the financial statements.

. Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical

requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships

and other matteis thai may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and

where applicable, related safeguards.

FCP CBS

Nairobi

12 June,2O24
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Msambweni County Referral Hospitfll (Kwale County Government)
Annuol Report antl Financial Statementslor The Year Ended 3dt' June 2023

14. Statement of Financial Performance for The Year Ended 30 June 2023

Revcnue from non-exchange transactions

'Iransfers from the County Government 6 2,745,932 2,973,000

494,782,720
In- kind contributions from the County
Covernmcnt

'7

436,565,t36

ttGrants from donors and development paftners

Transfers from other Government entities 9

l0Public contributions and donations

Rcvenuc from cxchangc transactions

llRcndering of services- Medical Service lncomc

t2Revenue from.rent of facilities

Financc /lnterest Income l3

l4Miscellaneous Income

Revenue from exchange transactions

197,528,652 439,538,136Total rcvcnuc

Expenses

15 102.482.058 80,886,291Medical/Clinical costs

l6 36s,302,792 333,002,269Employee costs

t7 467,500Board of Management Expenses

l8 t,424,321 92,200Depreciation and amortization expense

Repairs and maintenance l9 2,152,738 4,174,256

Grants and subsidies 20

2l 15,279,157 15,744,293General expenses

22Finance costs

486,715,566 434,366,809Total expenses

Other gains/Qosses)

23Gain/Loss on disposal of non-Current assets

74,500

I



Msambwen County Referrol Hospital (Kwale County Government)Annuol Re ond Financiql Stalements r The Yeor Ended 3dt, June 2023

(The notes s out on pages x to xx form an integral part of the Annual Financial statements.)

The Hospit s financial statem on aq\ andsigned on its
ents were approved by the Board

fiXt-r'r,r+ Nr, Nqo.ne_s Nst&e
lh{ffi N.nh.r
Chairman

Board ofM

Head of ofFinance
ICPAK No:

Hospital I ECrof
gement fll*

Unrealized g n on fair value of investments 24

s contracts Gains/LossesMedical servi 25

lmpairment I 26

Total other (losses)

Nct Surplus (Deficit) for the year 10,913,096 833,353

2

'D'

tttF(tlAt
P.0. Bor E.

I

Gain on foreign exchange transactions



Msambweni CountY Referral HosPital (Kwale CounlY Governmenl)
Ended 3dt' June 2023

Annual RePort ond Financiil Slatements for The Year

15. Statement of Financial Position As At 30th June 2023

Asscts

Current assets 3557
2'l

Cash and cash equivalents
.tJe transactlonsfro xce hlllScabcceR

o SllSll actlallac-ex ht1o geltlnfro

lnventories

Total Current Assets

Non-current Assets
829,19611,642,885

lant ,and equiPmeutProperty, P

Intangible assets

Investment c
I 1,642,885

Total Non-current Assets
I 1,642,885

Total assets

Liabilitics

rrent liabilitigs 'Cu
34

Trade and other PaYables
35

36
Pro lons

3'7
Finance lease obligation

38rtion of deferred incomeCurrent Po
39ortion of borrowingsCurrent p
4l

Social Benefits

Total Currcnt Liabilities

Non-current liabilities
36

Provisions
3'7

n-Current Finance lease obligationNo
38

Non-Current Portion of deferred income

39
Non - Current Portion of borrowings

40
Service concession liabilitY

4l

J

Receiveable

R'efundable from customers/Patients

Social Benefits



rrent liabilitiesTotal Non-c

Nct asscts
833,353

uV Deficit Previous YearReserve-su 833,3 5310,813,086
surplus/DeficitAcctlmulate

Capital Fun
11,646,439

tsTotal Net
11,646,439

and [.iabiliticsTotal Net

Msambweni u,ru Referral HosPital (Kwale CountY Government)

rl antl Finuncial Statements or The Yeor Ettded 3dh June 2023
Annual Re,

(The notes t out on pages x to xxform an integral part of the Annual Financial Statements')

oard on +\+\ ,}o

NOL
and

,e€The Hosp
signed on

's financial statem

ehalf bv

ents were aPProved bY the B

$6lrsaA \ 'Nqrrne

N .$(.!,ottlr*t
Chairma
Iloard of anagcment

Head of Financc
ICPAK NO:

Hospita Director

4

a_qr

-+
Pt e

P. g. e
0ot

8- r0sttht

Total Liabilitics

833,353



Ms a m bwe n i Co u nty Refe r ra t Hospilal (Kwale County Government)
Annual Report ond Financial Statementsfor The Year Endetl 3dt' June 2023

16. Statement of Changes in Net Asset for The year Ended 30 June 2023

As at July 1,2023 (previous year)

Revaluation gain
833,3 s3

Surplus/ (defi c i t) for the year

Capital/Development grants

As at June 30,2022 (previous year) 833,353

At July 1,2023 (current year) 833,353
Revaluation gain

Surplus/(deficit) for the year I 0,813,086
Capital/Development grants

At June 30,2023 (current year) 11,646,439

5
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Msambweni County Referral llospital (Kwa
Annual Report and Financial Slalementsfo

le Counly Governmenl)
r The Year Ended 3dh June 2023

2,973,0002,745,932

Cash flows from operating activities

Transf'ers from the County Government

Public contributions and donations

Rendering of serviccs- Medical Service Income

Revcnuc from rent ol' lacilities

Miscel laneous receipts(s pe c iJy )

F'inance / interest income

Total Ileccipts 2,745,932

301 ,852

2,973,000

74,500

346,872

2,022,708

2,745,932

42 925,553

(-)

G)

Board of Management Iixpenses

Net cash flows from operating activities

Purchase ofproperty, plant, equipment &

Proceeds from the sale ofproperty, plant, and

Net cash flows used in investing activities

Financc costs

Refunds paid out

Total Payments

lplnc I]ue

intangiblc assets

Paymcnts

Medical/Clinical costs

Repairs and maintenance

General expenses

Grants and subsidies

Acquisition of investments

17. Statement of Cash Flows for The Year Ended 30 June 2023

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from borrowings

Repayment of borrowings

(-)

(,

I

6

Capital grants received

(-)

Receipts

Grants from donors and development partners

Transl'ers from other Govemment entities

Employee costs

(467,s00)

Cash flows from investing activities

(-)

(-)

(-)
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Msambweni County Referral Hospital (Kh'ale Counly Go vern ment)
Annuol Report and Financial Statementsfor The Year Ended 3dh June 2023

Net cash flows uscd in financing activities G) (,
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
eq uivalents G)

Cash and cash equivalents as at I July 27

Cash and cash equivalents as at 30 June 27

'1
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l8' Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts for year Ended 30 Jun 2023

1l b c=(a+b) e=(c_d)
Kshs Ks hs Kshs Kshs KshsRevcn uc

ntfro he C uo n oG c mrn l1efy 63,460,000 10,148,525 73,608,525 82%In kind contri
Govemment

butions from the County

71,s54,632
fro dm no ro anS dd eve o em n a nrt ersp p

o//oTransfers from other Government entities 365,302,792 365,302,792 36s,302,792
Publ ic contributions and donations

o//oering of services- Medical ServiceRend
Income %
Revenue from rent of facilities

%Finance / interest income
o//oMiscellaneous recei s
o//oTotal income 428,762,792 10,149,525 43g,gll,317

Expenses

Medical/Clinical costs 32, r 00,000 33,845,500 t02,492,059 9t%Employee costs 365,302,792 365,302,792 365,302,792 t00%Remuneration of d irectors 300,000 300,000 74,500 25%Repairs and maintenance 7,100,000 ( r ,8ss,000) 5,245,000 2,152,739 45%Grants and subsidies
%General expenses 21,460,000 265,142 21,725,t42 15,279,157 67%
o//oDepreciation

1,424,321 o//o

Total expenditure 426 262,792 155 642 426 418,434 66486 715
97"

Surplus for the period 2,500 000 9 992,993 12,492 83 10,813,096 %

8

d f=d/c%"

Transfers
60,671,228

Grants

t00%

497,529,652 97%

1,745,500

Finance costs
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The Hospital's financial ents were aPProved bY the Board on

t.llA- g.
4

pQdtu3r.p,r

Msambweni Co

Annual RePort

Budget notes
l. Medicar costs compnses of pharmaceutical products v'hose budget and purchases are centrally at the health administration of

Kshs.71,554,632

a:t! t[ gned on its behalfb ylAoe
I

Chairman
Board of Management

Head of Finace
ICPAK

Hospital Director

9

20.



Msamhwe i County Referral HospitaI (Kwale Counly Government)
Annual rt and Financial Sluleme ntsfor The Year Ended 3dh June 2023

I 9. Notes to the Financial Statements

l. Gbneral Information

Msambwpni County Referral Hospital entity is established by and derives its authority and

accountability from Public Finance Management Act. The entity is wholly owned by the

Kwale Qounty Government and is domiciled in Kwale County in Kenya. The entity's

principal activity is to Offer Quality healthcare services for the Kwale County Government

community and beyond

Statement of Compliance and Basis of Preparation

Thc financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the

mepsurement at re-valued amounts of certain items of property, plant, and equipment,

matketable securities and financial instruments at fair value, impaired assets at their

esthnated recoverable amounts and actuarially determined liabilities at their present

value. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Intemational Public

Seqtor Accounting Standards (IPSAS) allows the use of estimates and assumptions. It

also requires management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the

hospital's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or

complexity, or where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial

statements, are disclosed in Note 5. The financial statements have been prepared and

presented in Kenya Shillings, which is the functional and reporting currency of the

^,

Ho

and

adc

spital. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the PFM Act,

I International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS). The accounting policies

tpted have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

tn



Msambweni Coutrty Referral Hospilal (Kwole Count), Governmenl)
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3. Adoption of New and Revised Standards

i. New and amended standards and interpretations in issue effective in the year ended

30 June 2023

Applicable: I't January 2023

The objective of IPSAS 4l is to establish principles for the financial

reporting of financial assets and liabilities that will present relevant

and useful information to users of financial statements for their

assessment of the amounts, timing and uncertainty of an E,ntity's

future cash flows.

IPSAS 4l provides users of financial statements with more useful

information than IPSAS 29, by:

. Applying a single classification and measurement model for

financial assets that considers the characteristics of the

asset's cash flows and the objective for which the asset is

held;

Applying a single forward-looking expected credit loss

model that is applicable to all financial instruments subject

to impairment testing; and

Applicable: 1'r January 2023

The objective of this Standard is to improve the relevance, faithful

representativeness and comparability of the information that a

reporting Entity provides in its financial statements about social

benefits. The information provided should help users of the financial

statements and general-purpose financial reports assess:

(a) The nature ofsuch social benefits provided by the Entity.

(b) The key features ofthe opcration of those social benefit scheme

IPSAS 42: Social

Benefits

ll

IPSAS

Financial

Instruments

4l:

. Applying an improved hedge accounting model that broadens

the hedging arrangements in scope of the guidance. The

model develops a strong link between an Entity's risk

management strategies and the accounting treatment for

instruments held as part of the risk management strategy.

(State lhe impact of lhe slandard lo the Entity if relevant)
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Amcndments to

Other IPSAS

resulting lrom

IPSAS 4I.

I:inancial

lnstruments

Othcr

improvements

IPSN S

to

and

(c) The impact of such social benefits provided on the Entity's

financial performance, financial position and cash flows.

(Stote lhe impact of the slandard to the Entity d relevant)

Applicable: I't January 2023

a) Amendments to IPSAS 5, to update the guidance related to the

components of borrowing costs which were inadvertently 
I

omitted when IPSAS 4l was issued. I

b) Amendments to IPSAS 30, regarding illustrative examples on

hedging and credit risk which were inadvertently omitted

when IPSAS 4l was issued.

c) Amendments to IPSAS 30, to update the guidance for

accounting for financial guarantee contracts which were

inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 41 was issued.

Amendments to IPSAS 33, to update the guidance on classiffing

financial instruments on initial adoption of accrual basis IPSAS which

were inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 4l was issued.

(Slale the impact of the slandard to the Entity if relevant)

Applicable In January 2023

o IPSAS 22 Disclosure of Financial Information about the General

Government Sector.

Amendments to refer to the latest System of National Accounts (SNA

2008).

o IPSIS 39: Employee Benefits

Now deletes the term composite social security benefits as it is no

longer defined in IPSAS.

o IPSAS 29: Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement

Standard no longer included in the 2023 IPSAS handbook as it is now

superseded by IPSAS 4l which is applicable from I't January 2023.

State lhe impact of the slandard to the Enlity if relevant

t,

ii) New and amended standards and interpretotions in issue but not yet effective in the

year ended 30 June 2023.
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Applicable ln January 2025

The standard sets out the principles for the recognition. measurement,

presentation, and disclosure of leases. The objective is to ensure that lessees

and lessors provide relevant information in a manner that faithfully

represents those transactions. This information gives a basis for users ofl

financial statements to assess the effect that leases have on the financial

position, financial performance and cashflows of an Entity.

The new standard requires entities to recognise. measure and present

information on right of use assets and lease Iiabilities.

State the expected impact of the slandard lo the Entity d relevant

IPSAS 43

IPSAS 44:

Non-

Current

Assets Held

for Sale and

Discontinued

Operations

Applicable In January 2025

The Standard requires:-

i. Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be

measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs

to sell and the depreciation of such assets to cease and:

ii, Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be

presented separately in the statement of financial position and the

results of discontinued operations to be presented separately in the

statement of fi nanc ial performance.

State the expecled impact of lhe standard to lhe Entily d relevant

iii) Early adoption of slandards

The Entity did not early - adopt any new or amended standards in the financial year

l1



Msambwe County Referral Hospital (Kwale County Governme nl)
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Revenue recognition

i) Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Transfen from other Government entities

Revenued from non-exchange transactions with other government entities are measured at fair

value and recognized on obtaining control ofthe asset (cash, goods, services and property) if
the transfer is free from conditions and it is probable that the economic benefits or service

potential rrelated to the asset will flow to the hospital and carr be measured reliably. To the

extent that there is a related condition attached that would give rise to a liability to repay the

amount, lhe amount is recorded in the statement of financial position and realised in the

statemenl of financial performance over the useful life of the asset that has been acquired

a.

uslng su

ii)

funds.

Revenue from exchange transactions

Renderilg of services

The entity recognizes revenue from rendering of services by reference to the stage of
completion when the outcome of the transaction can be estimated reliably. The stage of
completion is measured by reference to labour hours incurredlo date as a percentage of total

estimated labour hours. Where the contract outcome cannot be measured reliably, revenue is

recognlz( :d only to the extent that the expenses incurred are recoverable

Sale of g

Revenue the sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of
oods

frorn

rship

nt of

Interest

Interest i

estimate(

owne have been transferred to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods and when the

at.n0u revenue can be measured reliably, and it is probable that the economic benefits or

service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity

lo"o,,"

fncome is accrued using the effective yield method. The effective yield discounts

I future cash receipts through the cxpected life of the financial asset to that asset's

net carry

interest i

ng amount. The method applies this yield to the principal outstanding to determine

ncome for each period

Ilcntal irncome

Rental iucome arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a

straight-line basis over the lease terms and included in revenue.

1A
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The original budget for FY 202212023 was approved by County Assembly on lst July 2022.

Subsequent revisions or additional appropriations were made to the approved budget in

accordance with specific approvals from the appropriate authorities. The additional

appropriations are added to the original budget by the entity upon receiving the respective

approvals in order to conclude the final budget. Accordingly, the entity recorded additional

appropriations on the FY 202212023 budget following the Board's approval. The entity's

budget is prepared on a different basis to the actual income and expenditure disclosed in the

financial statements. The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis using a

classification based on the nature of expenses in the statement of financial performance,

whereas the budget is prepared on a cash basis. The amounts in the financial statements were

recast from the accrual basis to the cash basis and reclassified by presentation to be on the

same basis as the approved budget.

A comparison of budget and actual amounts, prepared on a comparable basis to the approved

budget, is then presented in the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts. In

addition to the Basis difference, adjustments to amounts in the financial statements are also

made for differences in the formats and classification schemes adopted for the presentation of

the financial statements and the approved budget. A statement to reconcile the actual amounts

on a comparable basis included in the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts

and the actuals as per the statement offinancial performance has been presented on page l-2

under section Iy' ofthese financial statements.

c. Taxes

Sales tax/ Value Added Tax

Expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of sales tax, except:

) When the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not

recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case, the sales tax is recognized

as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as

applicable.

D When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of sales tax

included. The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the

taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the statement of

financial position.

l<

b. Budget information
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d. In tment property

properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. The carrying

amount i cludes the replacement cost of components of an existing investment property at the

time that st is incurred if the recognition criteria are met and excludes the costs of day-to-

day mai

Investm

ce of an investment property

property acquired through a non-exchange transaction is measured at its fair value

properti

te of acquisition. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are

using the cost model and are depreciated over a period of years. Investment

are derecognized either when they have been disposed of or when the investment

propcrty is permanently withdrawn lrom use and no future economic benefit or servlce

potential is expected from its disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and

the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in the surplus or deficit in the period of de-

recognition. Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change

Investm

at the

measu

the item

recognl

surplus

or nom I

nt usc

e. Pro , plant and equipment

All pro , plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and

rmparrm nt losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of

When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced

at intcrv ls. the entity recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and

deprcci s them accordingly. t,ikewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is

recogn in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the

n criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in

deficit as incurred. Where an asset is acquired in a non-exchange transaction for nil

I consideration the asset is initially measured at its fair value.

IA
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f. Leases

Finance leases are leases that transfer substantially the entire risks and benefits incidental to

ownership of the leased item to the Entity. Assets held under a finance lease are capitalized at

the commencement of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the

present value of the future minimum lease payments. The Entity also recognizes the

associated lease liability at the inception ofthe lease. The liability recognized is measured as

the present value of the future minimum lease payments at initial recognition.

Subsequent to initial recognition, lease payments are apportioned between finance charges

and reduction ofthe lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining

balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognized as finance costs in surplus or deficit.

An asset held under a finance lease is depreciated over the useful life ofthe asset. However, if
there is no reasonable certainty that the Entity will obtain ownership of the asset by the end of

the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter ofthe estimated useful life of the asset

and the lease term.

Operating leases are leases that do not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits

incidental to ownership of the leased item to the Entity. Operating lease payments are

recognized as an operating expense in surplus or deficit on a straight-line basis over the lease

term.

g. Intangible assets

lntangible assets acquired separately are initially recognized at cost. The cost of intangible

assets acquired in a non-exchange transaction is their fair value at the date of the exchange.

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated

amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangible assets,

excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in

surplus or deficit in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. The useful life of the

intangible assets is assessed as either finite or indefinite.

1'7
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h. Research and development costs

The EntiS expenses research cosls as incurred. Developtnent costs on an individual project

are recognized as intangible assets when the Entity can demonstrate:

) The technical feasibility of completing the asset so that the asset will be

available for use or sale

D lts intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset

D The asset will generate future economic benefits or service potential

D The availability of resource s to complete the asset

) The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development.

Following initial recognition of an asset, the asset is carried at cost less any accumulated

amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization of the asset begins when

tent is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortized over the period of

future benefit. During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment

with an1, impairment losses recognized immediately in surplus or deficit.

developn

expected

annually

A financial

financ ial li

Financial instrumcnts

IPSAS 41 addresses the classification, measurement and de-recognition of financial assets

and financial liabilities, introduces new rules for hedge accounting and a new impairment

model for financial assets. Ifte entity does not have any hedge relationships and therefore the

new hedge accounling rules hwe no impact on lhe Company's financial slatemenls. (amend

as appropriate).

instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a

ability or equity instrument of another entity. At initial recognition, the entity

m(]asure a financial asset or financial liability at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a

asset or financial liability uot at fair value through surplus or deficit, transaction

are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial

s

fin

co

an

tS

c ial

that

ity.

s

liabil

IQ

Mrunthweni
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Classification of financial assets

The entity classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value

through net assets/ equity or fair value through surplus and deficit on the basis of both the

entity's management model for financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics

of the financial asset. A financial asset is measured at amortized cost when the financial asset

is held within a management model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to

collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on

specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the

principal outstanding. A financial asset is measured at fair value through net assets/ equity if
it is held within the management model whose objective is achieved by both collecting

contractual cashflows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial

asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and

interest on the principal amount outstanding. A financial asset shall be measured at fair value

through surplus or deficit unless it is measured at amortized cost or fair value through net

assets/ equity unless an entity has made irrevocable election at initial recognition for

particular investments in equity instruments.

Subsequent measurement

Based on the business model and the cash flow characteristics, the entity classifies its

financial assets into amortized cost or fair value categories for financial instruments.

Movements in fair value are presented in either surplus or deficit or through net assets/ equity

subject to certain criteria being met.

Amortized cost

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows

represent solely payments of principal and interest, and that are not designated at fair value

through surplus or deficit, are measured at amortized cost. A gain or loss on an instrument

that is subsequently measured at amortized cost and is not part of a hedging relationship is

recognized in profit or loss when the asset is de-recognized or impaired. Interest income from

these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.

lo

Financial assets
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Fair value through net assets/ equity

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the

financial assets, where the assets' cash flows represent solely payments of principal and

interest, are measured at fair value through net assets/ equity. Movements in the carrying

amount ale taken through net assets, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses,

interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized in

surplus/dificit. lnterest income from these financial assets is included in finance income

using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through surplus or delicit

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or fair value through net

assets/ eq

the entity

the sale of the assets would result in a fair value through surplus or deficit model

uity are measured at fair value through surplus or deficit. A business model where

manages financial assets with the objective of realizing cash flows through solely

Trade an

-frade 
and other receivables are recognized at fair values less allowances for any uncollectible

amounts

estimate

year end

Trade and other receivables are assessed for impairment on a continuing basis. An

s made ofdoubtful receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts at the

Impair ent

The entity assesses, on a forward-looking basis, the expected credit loss ('ECL') associated

with its ffnancial assets carried at amortized cost and fair value through net assets/equity. The

entify recognizes a loss allowance for such losses at each reporting date. Critical estimates

and significant judgments made by management in determining the expected credit loss

Financi{l liabilities

Classilidation
I

The entify classifies its Iiabitities as subsequently measured at amortized cost except for

d othcr rcceivablcs

(ECL) are set out in Note xx

financ ial liabilities measured through profit or loss

1n

I
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j. Inventories

Inventory is measured at cost upon initial recognition. l'o the extent that inventory was

received through non-exchange transactions (for no cost or for a nominal cost), the cost ofthe

inventory is its fair value at the date of acquisition.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and conditions are accounted

for as follows:

) Raw materials: purchase cost using the weighted average cost method.

D Finished goods and work in progress: cost of direct materials and labour, and a

proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity but

excluding borrowing costs.

After initial recognition, inventory is measured at the lower cost and net realizable value.

However, to the extent that a class of inventory is distributed or deployed at no charge or for

a nominal charge, that class of inventory is measured at the lower cost and the current

replacement cost.Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of

operations, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make

the sale, exchange, or distribution. Inventories are recognized as an expense when deployed

for utilization or consumption in the ordinary course of operations of the Entity.

k. Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Entity has a prcsent obligation (legal or constructive) as a

result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic

benefits or service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate

can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Where the Entity expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an

insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset only when the

reimbursement is virtually certain.

The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of financial performance

net of any reimbursement.

1t
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Social Benefits

nefits are cash transfers provided to i) specific individuals and / or households that

rligibility criteria, ii) mitigate the effects of social risks and iii) Address the need of

ta whole. The entity recognises a social benefit as an expense for the social benefit

I the same time that it recognises a liability. The liability for the social benefit

s measured at the best estimate of the cost (the social benefit payments) that the

I incur in fulfilling the present obligations represented by the liability.

t.

Social be

meet the r

society a!

sc

sc

em

em

h

h

e

e

a

ir

ittyenl r

n

The Enti does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses details ofany contingenctes

in the n tes to the financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources

embodyi g economic benefits or service potcntial is remote

I Contingent asrets

I

p ao"r not recognize a contingent asset but discloses details of a possible asset

whose istence is contingent on the occurrence or non-occulTence ofone or more uncertain

ents not wholly within the control of the Entity in the notes to the financial

statcme Contingent assets are assessed continually to ensure that developments are

appropn tely reflected in the financial statements. If it has become virtually certain that an

inflow economic benefits or service potential will arise and the asset's value can be

reliably, the asset and the related revenue are recognized in the financial statements

od in which the change occurs.ofthe p

nt

'l'he Ent

future c

Incas

o.

The enti

Contingent liabilities

Nature and purpose of reserves

creates and maintains reserves in terms of specific requiremcnts

Changes in accounting policies and estimates

recognizes the effects ofchanges in accounting policy retrospectively. The effects

in accounting policy are applied prospectively if retrospective application is

p

'l-he Entity

of changes

impractical

"r)
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q Employee benefits

Retirement benefi t plans

The Entity provides retirement benefits for its employees and directors. Defined contribution
plans are post-employment benefit plans under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a

separate entity (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further

contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating

to employee service in the current and prior periods.'Ihe contributions to fund obligations for

the payment of retirement benefits are charged against income in the year in which they

become payable. Defined benefit plans are post-employment benefit plans other than defined-

contribution plans. The defined benefit funds are actuarially valued tri-annually on the

projected unit credit method basis. Deficits identified are recovered through lump-sum

payments or increased future contributions on a proportional basis to all participating

employers. The contributions and lump sum payments reduce the post-employment benefit

obligation.

r, Foreign currency transactions

'fransactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted for at the ruling rate of exchange on

the date of the transaction. Trade creditors or debtors denominated in foreign currency are

reported at the statement offinancial position reporting date by applying the exchange rate on

that date. Exchange differences arising from the settlement ofcreditors, or from the reporting

of creditors at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the

period, are recognized as income or expenses in the period in which they arise.

s. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are capitalized against qualifuing assets as part of property, plant and

equipment. Such borrowing costs are capitalized over the period during which the asset is

being acquired or constructed and bonowings have been incurred. Capitalization ceases when

construction of the asset is complete. Further borrowing costs are charged to the statement of

financial performance.

t Related parties

The Entity regards a related party as a person or an entity with the ability to exert control

individually or jointly, or to exercise significant influence over the Entity, or vice versa.

Members of key management are regarded as related parties and comprise the directors, the

CEO/principal and senior managers.

,?
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Service concession arrangements

where a X

when, ant

with the r

!y analyses all aspects of service concession arrangements that it enters into in

ng the appropriate accounting treatment and disclosure requirements. In particular,

)rivate party contributes an asset to the arrangement, the Entity recognizes that asset

I only when, it controls or regulates the services. The operator must provide together

Bsset, to whom it must provide them, and at what price. In the case of assets other

recognlz

u.

The Entii

determinl

than'w le-of-life' assets, it controls, through ownership, beneficial entitlement or otherwise

- anv sl ificant residual interest in the asset at the end of the arrangement. Any assets so

are measured at their fair value. To the extent that an asset has been recognized,

Where

reconfi

the Hos tal also recognizes a corresponding liability, adjusted by a cash consideration paid

or recer

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term deposits on

call and highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which are

readily cpnvertible to known amounts ofcash and are subject to insignificant risk of changes

in value. Bank account balances include amounts hetd at the Central Bank of Kenya and at

various oommercial banks at the end of the financial year. For the purposes ofthese financial

statemenls, cash and cash equivalents also include short term cash imprests and advances to

authorised public offrcers and/or institutions which were not surrendered or accounted for at

the end ofthe financial year.

w
Ii Comparative figures

i

nlecessary comparative figures for the previous financial year have been amended or
I

efred to conform to the required changes in presentation.

x. Subsequent cvents

There hqve been no events subsequent to the financial year end with a significant impact on
l

the finadcial statements for the year ended June 30,2023.

'lA
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Annual Report and Fi.

eferrol Hospital (Kwale County Governmenl)
nancial Statementsfor The Year Ended 3dh June 2023

5. Significant Judgments and Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The preparation of the Entity's financial statements in conformity with IPSAS requires

management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts

of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the

end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates

could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset

or liability affected in future periods.

Estimates and assumptions,

The key assumptions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at

the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The

Entity based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated

financial statements were prepared. However, existing circumstances and assumptions about

future developments may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the

control of the Entity. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.( IPSAS

r.140)

Useful lives and residual values

The useful lives and residual values of assets are assessed using the following indicators to

inform potential future use and value from disposal:

Entity.

and processes.

Provisions

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information

available. Additional disclosure of these estimates of provisions is included in Note xxx.

Provisions are measured at the management's best estimate of the expenditure required to

settle the obligation at the reporting date and are discounted to present value where the effect

is material.

')<



Msamh County Referral Hospitul (Kwale County Governmenl)
r The Year Ended 3dh June 2023Annual R rt and Financiol Statements fo

Notes to inancial Statcments Continued

6. Tra rs from the County Government

6b Tr fers from The Coun Government

2,973,000

2 973 000

Unconditional grants

Operatio I grant

Uncondi onal development grants

[,cvcl 5 ts

Other grants
2,973,0002,745,932

al grantsConditi

ing hcalth services for Universal care project
User fee orgone

l'ransfo

DANID

Wards Development granl

2,97J,000

block grant

2,,715,932

Pacdia

rnment grants and subsidies

Admini

[,aborat

Total

tion block grant

grant

Kshs

2,745,932

2,745,9322,745,932

.,4

Transfers from The County Government

('frrucP)

Kwale
County
Govcrnment

I'otal



Msambweni Counly Referral Hospital (Kwale County Governmenl)
Annual Report and Financial Stalementsfor The Yeor Entletl 3dh June 2023

Notcs to Financial Statements Continued

7. In Kind Contributions from The County Government

8. Grants From Donors and Development Partners

8 (a) Grants from donors and development partners (Classification)

Salaries and wages 365,302,792

Medical supplies-Drawings Rights (KEMSA)

333,002,269

71,554,632 45,7 t4,815Pharmaceuticals and Non-Pharmaceutical Supplies (other
suppliers)

57,848,052Utility bills -Electronic Payments

494,782,720 436,565,136
Total grants in kind

Cancer Centre grant- DANIDA

Paediatric ward grant- JICA

Research grants

Other grants (specify)

Total grants from development partners

Donor e.g., DANIDA
JICA

World []ank

a1

Total

57,925,296

World Bank grants



Mstmhwe i County Refenal Hospital (Kwole County Government)
The Year Ended 3dh June 2023Annuul rt and Finsncial Stalemenls for

Notcs to nancial Statcments Continued

9. Tra rs From Othcr Govcrnme nt Entities

10. Pub Contributions and f)onations

l0 (a) onciliations of amortised grants

lrom National Government (Ministry of Health)Transfe r
'[ rans l'cr from National I lospital

from Institute'l'ransfer

Total Tr ansfers

Public dc )natlons

rs from religious institutions

rs from other international organisations and

rls

Donatior

Donatior
individu,

Other dc nations(specify)

rs in kind-amortisedDonat ior

Total do nations and sponsorships

Balancc unspent at beginning of year

Current,

Amort ist ld and transferred to revenue

rear receipts

Conditi( rns to be met - remain liabilities

,)Q

Donations from local leadership
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Msambweni Counly Referral Hospital (Kkale Counly Governmenl)
Annual Report and Finoncial Slutementsfor The Year Ended 3dh June 2023

Notes to Financial Statements Continued

I l. Rendering of Services-Medical Service Incomc

Pharmaceuticals

Non-Pharmaceuticals

Laboratory

Radiology

Orthopedic and Trauma Technology

l'heatre

Accident and Emergency Service

Anesthesia Service

Ear Nose and Throat service

Nutrition service

Cancer centre service

Dental services

Reproductive health

Paediatrics services

Farewell home services

Other medical services income (specfy)
Total revenue from the rendering of
services

,o

I

I

I

I
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Annual rt and Financial Stslemenls r The Year Ended 3dh June 2023

Notcs to e Financial Statements (Continued)

12. Rev ue From Rent of Facilities

13. Fin ce /I nterest Income

14. M aneous Income

Rcsidcnt al property

Commen :ial property

Total Re venue from rent of facilities

Cash inv estments and fixed deposits

Interest i
deposits

ncome from short- term/ current

Intcrest i ncome from Treasury Bills

Interest i ncome from Treasury Bonds

iom outstanding debtorsInterest I

Total fir ance income

recovenesInsurance

Income from sale of tender

Services concession income

Sale of goods (water, publications, containers etc)

Write backs (Deposits, payments in advance etc)

Bad debts recovered

Others (Specify)

Total neous lncomeMiscella

1n
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Msambweni Co
Annual Reporl

unty Referral Hospilal (Kwale Counly Governmenl)
and Financial Slalenrentsfor The Year Endetl 3dh June 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

15. Medical/ Clinical Costs

16. Employee Costs

Other employee costs (specify)

Employee costs

1,t24,739

365,302,792

Dental costs/ materials

668,9t7Laboratory chemicals and reagents

Public health activities
t7,753,492 t3,771,676F'ood and Ration

745,420 672,100Uniform, clothing, and linen

5,968,895

71,554.632

6,395,409Dressing and Non-Pharmaceuticals

Pharmaceutical supplies

Health information stationery

Reproductive health materials

4,337,552Sanitary and cleansing Materials 3,727,802

2,062,900 8.250.000Purchase of Medical gases

620,000X-Ray/Radiology supplies

Other medical related clinical costs (specify)

80,886,291102,482,058Total medical/ clinical costs

333,002,269

Contributions to pension schemes

Service gratuity

Performance and other bonuses

Staff medical expenses and Insurance cover

Group personal accident insurance and WIBA

Social contribution

333,,002,269

1t

45,714,815

Salaries, wages, and allowances 365,302,792



f
Msu, we

A ,tnuo u,,d Fi cl
h Counly Referrul Hospilu (Kwale

,ton ul Slatemen,.ffor The ur d Jdh
Counly Government)

Ye Ende Juna 2023

2,152,739

I I
I

Notcs to e Financial Statements (Continued)

17. Boa of Management Expenses

18. Dep iation and Amortization Expense

19. Re rs And Maintenance

Main

Total airs and maintenance

Chairmar r's Honoraria
467,50074.500Sitting al lowance

Mileage

Insurancr i expenses

Inductior r and training

rd accommodation allowanceTravel ar

Airtime r rllowances
74,500 467,500Total

92,200t,424,321Property

lntangibl

plant and equipment

e assets

Int property carried at cost

92,2001,424,321

Investnr(

Total depreciation and amortization

1,627,244 3.577,059Property' Buildings

Mcdical equipment 280.954

Furnitu and fittings 105.877 - 230,000

Computers and accessories
367,197Motor vchicle expenses t38,662

tnce of civil rvorks
4,174,256

1.)

Office equipment
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Msambweni County Referral Hospilal (Kwale County Government)
Annual Report and Finoncial Statemenlsfor The Year Ended 3dh June 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

20. Grants And Subsidies

21, General Expenses

Community development and social work

Education initiatives and programs

ljree/ subsidised medical camp

Disability programs

Free cancer screening

Social benefit expenses

Total grants and subsidies

Advertising and publicity expenses

r62. t 855 89.705

Waste management expenses

492.000Insecticides and rodenticides

77,197 t 9,488Bank charges

Conferences and delegations

Consultancy fees

Contracted services

Electricity expenses

7,369,638Fuel and Lubricants

Insurance

Research and development expenses

t.217.6t2 1,055,880Travel and accommodation allowance

Legal expenses

Licenses and permits
s360Courier and postal services

4,496,396 |9t423Printing and stationery

Hire charges

Rent expenses

14365001,20t,797Water and sewerage costs

Skills development levies
3t4,298 202399Telephone and mobile phone servtces

Internet expenses

11

Other grants and subsidies(specrfy)

-t

Catering expenses

-l

Audit fees

I

I

12,5t4



1

Staff train ing and development

ons to newspapers periodical,
;, and gazette notices

Subscriptr
magazine

[.ihrarv br>oks/Materials

Parking c
15,,741,293rera! Expenses

larges
15,279,157Total Cer

Borrowin gs (amortized cost) *

Finance I :ases (amortized cost)

Interest on Bank overdrafts/Guarantees

Inte rcst cr n loans from commercial banks

Total fin ance costs

Property, plant, and equipment

lntangible assets

Other assets not capitalised (spectfy)

Total gain on sale of assets

Investmer rts at fair value

Total gai n

Counly Referral Hospilal (Kwale Counly Government)
and Finoncial Stalemenlsfor The Year Ended 3dh June 2023Annual Re

22. Fina Costs

23. Gai ss on Disposal of Non-Current Assets

24. Un Gain On Fair Value Investments

-lA

I

Subscriptions to professional bodies



Msambweni Co
Annual Reporl

unly Referral Hospital (Kwale Counly Governmenl)
and Finoncial Statementsfor The Year Endetl 3dh June 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

25. Medical Services Contracts Gains /Losses

26. Impairment Loss

27. Cash And Cash Equivalents

Comprehensive care contracts with NHIF

Non- Comprehensive contracts care with NHIF

Linda Mama Program

Property, plant, and equipment

Intangible assets

Total impairment loss

3557Current accounts

Fixed deposits accounts

Cash in hand

Others(s pe c ify)- Mob i le money

3557Total cash and cash equivalents

2<

I

Waivers and E,xemptions

Total Cain/Loss

On - call deposits
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County Referral Hospitul ( Kwale Co unty Gove rnme nt)

Annual R rt and ?-inancial Slalemenls r The Year Ended 3dh June 2023

Notcs to the Financial Statemcnts (Continued)

27 (a). led Analysis of Cash and Cash Equivalents

total

28. R ables From fi,xchange Transactions

3557

a) Currr nt account
3557Kenyz

Iiquitl

Commcrcial bank

' Bank. etc

3557Sub- t otal

b)On-t all deposits

Kenye Comme rcial bank

Equit; , Bank - etc
I

Sub- I otal

c) Fixed deposits account

Sub- t otal

s(specify)d) Other

cash i r hand

Mobil
mone!

e money- Mpesa, Airtet

Sub-'
(]ran,

rvices receivablesMcdical

Rcnt re vables

Other exchange debtors

Less: imfairment allowance (-)

Total roc

(,

ivables

1A

I147035164

IJank Narnc
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Msambweni Co unly Referral
Annual Reporl and Financia

Hospital (Kwale County Government)
I Slatemenlsfor The Year Entled 3dh June 2023

Anal sis of Receivables From Exchan e Transactions

29. Receivables From Non-ExchangeTransactions

Anal sis of Receivables From Non-Exchan e Transactions

7o of the

total

oh of
the

total

Com parative
FY

YoLess than I year
oBetween l- 2 years
oA %Between 2-3 years

Yo %
o//oo,//o

Over 3 years

Total (a+b)

Transfers from the County Government

Undisbursed donor funds

Other debtors (non-exchange transactions)

Less: impairment allowance

Total

7o of the

total
Current

t'Y
"/" of the

total
Comparative

FY

70YoLess than I year

%Between l- 2 years
o/o%Between 2-3 years

%%Over 3 years

Total (a+b)

71

Current
FY

%

%

%
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Annual Repo rt and Financial Stalementsfor The Year Ended 3dh June 2023

30. Inventories

Total

Pharmaceutical supplies

Cleaning materials supplies

Maintenance supplies

Lincn and clothing supplies

Food supplies

(-)(,Less: provision for impairment of stocks

General supplies

1a



Msambweni County Referrd Hospital (Kwale County Government)
Annuol Report and Financial Statementsfor The Year Ended 3dh June 2023

Noles to the Financial Statements (Conlinued)

31. Property, Plant and Equipment

Cost

At I July 2022 (previous year) 829,796 829,796

Additions

Disposals o (-) (-) C) (, C) C)

Tran sfers/adj ustments

At 30'h Jun 20XX 829,796 829.796

At I July 2023 (current year) 829,796 829,796

Additions t0,271,744 392,000 t,297,702 275,964 12,237,4t0

Disposals

Transfer/adj ustments

At 30th Jun 2023 11,101,540 392,000 t,297,702 275,964 13,067,206 -

Depreciation and impairment

At I July 2022 (previous year)

Depreciation for the year l,ll0,l54 156,800 129,770 27,596 r,424,32t

Disposals

Impairment (, ( ) (, C) ( ) (-)

At 30 June 2023 I,l10,154 129,770 27,596 1,424,321

a

39

C)

156,800



Msambweni Counry, Referral Hospilol (Kwale County Government)
Annual a nd Fi nanc io I Stoteme nts The Year Entletl 3dh June 2023

At July 2023 (current year)

Depreciation

Disposals C) ( ) C) (-) -)

oImpairment ( ) C) , (, o
Transfer/adj ustment

9,991,386 235,200 1,t67,932 248,368 11,642,885At 30th June 2023

il.r0r,540 392,000 1,297,702 275,964 t3,067,206Net book values
829,796At 30'h Jun 2022 (previous) 829,796

I1,101,540 1,297,702 392,000 275,964 13,067,206

40
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Msambweni Co unty Referral
Annuol Report and Finoncia

Hospital (Kwale Counly Government)
I Statementsfor The Yeur Ended 3dh June 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

32. Intangible Assets-Software

At end ofthc year

33. InvestmentProperty

Cost

At bcginning of the year

Additions

Additions-lnternal development

0- (-)Disposal

At end ofthe year

Amortization and impairment

At be ginning of the ycar

Amortization for the period

Impairment loss

At beginning of the year

(-) (-)Disposals during the year

(-) (,Depreciation (where investment property is al cosl)

(-)(-)lmpairment
At end of the year

4t

NBV

Additions

Fair value gain
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Counly Referrol Hospilal (Kwa le County Government)
r The Year Ended 3dh June 2023Annual R rl and Financial Slotements

Notcs the Financial Statements (Continued)

J,t. de and other Payables

J5. Rc dable Deposits from Customers/Patients

12, r06,781Trade pa yables

Employe e dues

Third-pa
deductio

rty payments (e.g. unremitted payroll
ar)

Audit fer

12,106,781Total trr rde and other payables
oh of
the

Total

Compa
rative

FY

oh of
the

total
Current

FYAgeing zrnalysis:
%t2,t06,78t 1000re yearUnder or
%%l-2 years
o/o%2-3 year:
%%Over 3 y tars

o/ o//o12,106,781Total

Mcd ical lees paid in advance

Crcdit fa :ility deposit

Others (s oect"[y)

oositsTotal de

Comparative FY

oh of
the

TotalCurrent FY

%o of
thc

TotalAgeing a nalysis:
%Under on
%%

%e year

I -2 years
%%2-3 years
%%Over 3 yr )ars
o//oTotal

I

42

Doctors' fee

Rent dcposits

o//o



Msambweni Counly Referral Hospital (Kwole County Government)
Annual Report and Financial Stalementsfor The Year Ended 3dh June 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

36. Provisions

37. Finance Lease Obligation

38. Deferred Income

Total

I

Balance at the beginning ofthe year
Additional Provisions
Provision utilised (-) (, (, (,
Change due to discount & time value for money (-) (-) (, (,
Total provisions

Current Provisions

Non-Current Provisions

Total Provisions

Kshs Kshs
Current Lease obligation

Long term lease obligation

Total

Current Portion

Non-Current Portion

43

I

I

I

-t



Msumb County Referral Hospital (Kwale Counly Govern ment)
.,lnnuul R rt and Financiol Stalemenls r The Year Ended 3dh June 2023

Notes to he Financial Statements (Continued)

38 (a) T deferred incomc movement is as follows:

39. Bo ngs

39. (ar kdown ofLong- and Short-Term Borrowings

Balancc b/f

( ) (,
during the year

to Capital fund

Additio

Transfe (-) (-)

( ) (-)Transfers to statement of
financial performance

(-) (-)

(-) (-) (-) (-)Other transfers (Spec tfi)
Balance CA-

ts ofexternal borrowings during the year

Balance

Extelnal

Domcsti

Repaym

t beginning ofthe period

rrowings during the year

borrowings during the year
( ) ( )

Repayments of domestic borrowings during the year (, (,
Balancc at end of thc period

lbligationCurrcnt (

Non-Curr ent Obligation

Total

44

I



Msombweni County R
Annual Report and Fi

eferral Hospilal (Kwale Counly Governmenl)
'nancial Statementsfor The Year Entletl 3dh June 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

40. Service Concession Arrangements

41. Social Bencfit Liabilitics

xxx(-)Accumulated depreciation to date

Net carrying amount
Service concession liability at beginning of the year

( ) (,Service concession revenue recognized

Health social benefit scheme

Unemployment social benefit scheme

Orphaned and vulnerable benefit scheme

People Living with Disabilities benefit

Scheme

Elderly social benefit scheme

Bursary social benefits

Total

Non- current social benefits

Total (tie to totals above)

15

Fair value of service concession assets recognized under

PPE

Service concession liability at end of the year

Current social benefits



1

Msamh County Referral Hospilal (Kwale Counly Government)

Ann ual R rt and Financiol Stalemenls r The Year Entled 3dh June 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

42. Cas Generated from Operations

925,553

833,353
92,200

_dqiu{9r
Deprecie

(-)(-)

(-)

Non-casl

Impairm

Contribu

I for:

int

tion to provisions

tion-
l grants received

tion to impairmcnt allowanceContribu

Workin; 1 Capital adjustments
(-)(-)in inventoryIncrease

(,Increase in receivables

in deferred incomeIncrease

( )

Incrcase in payables

in payments received in advanceIncrease

flow from operating activitiesNet casl

46

.C:ins add losses on disposal o[assets__.
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Msambweni County Referrol Hospital (Kn'ale County Governmenl)
Annual Report and Financial Statementsfor The Year Entletl 3dh June 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

43. Financial Risk Management

The entity's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including credit and liquidity
risks and effects of changes in foreign currency. The company's overall risk management

programme focuses on the unpredictability ofchanges in the business environment and seeks

to minimise the potential adverse effect of such risks on its performance by setting acceptable

levels of risk. The company does not hedge any risks and has in place policies to ensure that

credit is only extended to customers with an established credit history.

The entity's financial risk management objectives and policies are detailed below:
(i) Credit risk

The entity has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to
pay amounts in full when due. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, and deposits

with banks, as well as trade and other receivables and available-for-sale financial
investments. Management assesses the credit quality of each customer, taking into account its
financial position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on

internal or external assessment in accordance with limits set by the directors. The amounts

presented in the statement offinancial position are net of allowances for doubtful receivables,

estimated by the company's management based on prior experience and their assessment of
the current economic environment. The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the

financial statements representing the entity's maximum exposure to credit risk without taking
account of the value of any collateral obtained is made up as follows:

At 30 June 2022 (previous year)

Receivables from exchange transactions

Bank balances

Total

At 30 June 2023 (current year)

Receivables from exchange transactions

Receivables from -non-exchange transactions

Bank balances

Total

47

Receivables from -non-exchange transactions



I Msambweni County Referral Hospital (Kh'a

Annual Report ond Financial Slatemenls fo
le Counly Governmenl)
r The Year Ended 3dh June 2023

(ii) Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the hospital's board of
management who have built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the

management of the entity's short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management

requirements. The entity manages liquidity risk through continuous monitoring of forecasts

and actual cash flows.
The table below represents cash flows payable by the company under non-derivative financial

liabilities by their remaining contractual maturities at the reporting date. The amounts

disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within l2
months equal their carrying balances. as the impact of discounting is not significant'

At 30 June 2023
Irade payables

Current portion of borrowings

Provisions

Defcrred incomc

Iimployee benefi t obli gation
'fotal

At 30 June 2023

Trade payables

Current portion of borrowings

l)rovisions

I)clerrcd income

48

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

The customers under the fully performing category are paying their debts as they continue

trading. The credit risk associated with these receivables is minimal and the allowance for

uncollectible amounts that the company has recognised in the financial statements is

considered adequate to cover any potentially irrecoverable amounts. The entity has significant

concentrAtion of credit risk on amounts due from. The board of management sets the

company's credit policies and objectives and lays down parameters within which the various

aspects of credit risk management arc operated.

'Iotal
Iimployce bcnefi t obligation

t
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Msambweni Counly Referral Hospital (Kwale County Government)
Annual Repofl and Financial Statements for The Year Entled 3dh June 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

(iii) Market risk

The hospital has put in place an intemal audit function to assist it in assessing the risk faced

by the entity on an ongoing basis, evaluate and test the design and effectiveness of its internal
accounting and operational controls. Market risk is the risk arising from changes in market
prices, such as interest rate, equity prices and foreign exchange rates which will affect the
entity's income or the value of its holding of financial instruments. The objective of market
risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable
parameters, while optimising the return. Overall responsibility for managing market risk rests
with the Audit and Risk Management Committee.

The company's Finance Department is responsible for the development of detailed risk
management policies (subject to review and approval by Audit and Risk Management
Committee) and for the day-to-day implementation of those policies. There has been no

change to the entity's exposure to market risks or the way it manages and measures the risk.

a) Foreign currency risk

The entity has transactional currency exposures. Such exposure arises through purchases of
goods and services that are done in currencies other than the local currency. Invoices
denominated in foreign currencies are paid after 30 days from the date of the invoice and
conversion at the time of payment is done using the prevailing exchange rate. The carrying
amount of the entity's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities
at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

The entity manages foreign exchange risk from future commercial transactions and
recognised assets and liabilities by projecting expected sales proceeds and matching the same
with expected payments.

At 30 June 2023

Financial assets (invgqlIrelts, cash, debtors) -

Liabilities

Trade and other payables

Borrowings

Nct foreign currency asse/ (l i uhi li ty)

49
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Msamhwe i County Referral Hospilal (Kwale Counly Governmenl)
Annual rl und Finsncial Stalemenls r The Year Ended 3dh June 2023

Notes to e Financial Statements (Continucd)

Foreign

The fol

rrency sensitivity analysis

ing table demonstrates the effect on the company's statement of financial

perform ce on applying the sensitivity for a reasonable possible change in the cxchange rate

of the t main transaction currencics. with all other variables held constant. The reverse

would a occur if the Kenya Shilling appreciated with all other variables held constant.

b) Inte t ratc risk

te risk is the risk that the entity's financial condition may be adversely affected as a

deposits

changes in interest rate levels. The company's interest rate risk arises from bank

This exposes the company to cash flow interest rate risk. The interest rate risk

arises mainly from interest rate movements on the company's deposits.

Mana ent of interest rate risk

Tom the interest rate risk, management has endeavoured to bank with institutions that

ol'fbr I'a rable interest rates

Interest

rcsult o

expos

At 30 June 2023

Financial assets (investments, cash, debtors)

Liabiliti es

TE:TE other payables

Borrowings

Net foreign cur:ency asset/ (l ia b i I ity)

2022 (pr evious year)
t0%Euro

I.JSD t0%
2023 (cu rrent year)

t0%Euro
USD t0%

!ffi
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Notcs to the Financial Statemcnts (Continucd)

Sensitivity analysis

'fhe entity analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis by conducting a sensitivity

analysis. This involves determining the impact on profit or loss of defined rate shifts. The

sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign

exchange rates, remain constant. The analysis has bcen performed on the same basis as the

prior year.

Using the end of the year figures, the sensitivity analysis indicates the impact on the

statement of financial performance if current floating interest rates increase/decrease by one

percentage point as a decrease/increase ofKShs (2022: KShs). A rate increase/decrease of5%
would result in a decrease/increase in surplus of KShs (2023 - KShs).

iv) Capital Risk Management
The objective of the entity's capital risk management is to safeguard the Hospital's

ability to continue as a going concern. The entity capital structure comprises of the

following funds:

Revaluation reserve

Retained earnings

Total funds

Total borrowings
(-) ( )Less: cash and bank balances

Net debV (excess cash and cash equivalents)
_oGearing

5l
,t

Capital reserve

-%
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44. Related Party Balances
I

Nature {f related party relationships

Entities fna otn.. parties related to the entity include those parties who have the ability to
l

exercise 
]control 

or exercise significant influence over its operating and financial decisions.

Related farties include management personnel, their associates, and close family members.
I

fwale Clunty Govemment is the principal shareholder of the entity, holding 100% of lhe entity's

equity inferest. The National Govemment of Kenya has provided full guarantees to all long-term
I

lenders ofthe entity, both domestic and extemal. The related parties include:
Ii) The National Government;
iii) The County Govemment;
I

'it) 
Board of Directors;

iV) Key Management

Transactions with related parties

a) Services offered to related parties

Services

'lbtal

b) Grants from thc (Jovcrnment

Grants from County Covernment

Crants from the National Govemment Entities

Donations in kind
'fotal

) Expcnses incurred on behalfofrelatcd partylct Payrnents of salaries and wages for employees

Total

d) Key managcment compensation

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Sales of services

Payments for goods and services for
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45. Segmentlnformation

Ql/here an organisation operates in dffirent geographical regions or in departments, IPSAS l8
on segmental reporting requires an entity to present segmental information of each geographic
region or departmenl to enable users understand the enlity's performance and allocalion of
resources to dffirent segments)

46. ContingentLiabilities

(Give details)

47. CapitalCommitments

(NB; Capital commitments are commitments to be carried out in the next finorcial year and are

disclosed in accordance with IPSAS 17. Capital commitments may be those that have been authorised

by the board but at the end of the year had not been contracted or those already contracted for and

ongoing)

Directors' emoluments

Compensation to the medical Sup

Compensation to key management

Total

court case against the company

Bank guarantees in favour of subsidiary

Kshs Kshs

Authorised For

Authorised And Contracted For

Total

53
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a

a

I

a

Annual
after the Reporting Period

There no material adjusting and non- adjusting events after the reporting period.

te and Holding Entity

The is a State Corporation/ or a Semi- Autonomous Government Agency under the

of Health. lts ultimate parent is the County Government of Kwale.

'l'he ial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs) and all values are rounded

off to st shilling.

2023

{8.

{9

50.
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20. Appen dices

Appendix l: Progress on Follow Up of Auditor Recommendations

The foltowing is the summary of issues raised by the extemal auditor, and management

comments that were provided to the auditor. We have nominated focal persons to resolve the

various issues as shown below with the associated time frame within which we expect the

issues to be resolved.

Guidancc Notes:

(i) Use the same reference numbers as contained in the external audit report.

(ii) Obtain the "lssue/Observation" and "management comments", required above, from the

final extemal audit report that is signed by Management.

(iii) Before approving the report, discuss the timeframe with the appointed Focal Point

persons within your entity responsible the for implementation of each issue.

(iv) Indicate the status of "Resolved" or "Not Resolved" by the date of submining this

repoft to National Treasury.

Accounting Officer

O

I

a
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Appendix II: Projects Implemented by The Entity

Projects

Projects implemented by the Hospital Funded by development partners

Status of Projects completion

(Summarise the status of project completion at the end of each quarler, i.e. total costs incuned, stage which the project is etc)

I
I

)

I

2

J
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Appendix III: Inter-Entity Confirmation Letter

I I nserl yo ur LetlerheadJ

[Insert name of beneficiuy entityJ

finsert Addressl

The [iruert SC/SAG,4/Fund name hereJ wishes to confirm the amounts disbursed to you as at 30th June 2023 as indicated in the table below.

Please compare the amounts disbursed to you with the amounts you received and populate the column E in the table below Please sign and stamp

this request in the space provided and return it to us.

a

I

Amounts Disbursed by [SC/SACA/Fund] (KShs) as at 30th June2023

Total
(D):(A+B+C)

Amount Received
by Ibeneficiary
entityl
(KShs) as at 30th

June 2023 (E)

Differences
(KShs)
(F)=(D-E)

Development (B) Inter-
Ministerial (C)

Date
Disbursed

Recurrent (A)Reference
Number

In confirm that the amounts shown above are correct as ofthe date indicated

DateSign

Head of Accounts Department of the beneficiary entity:

Name

57
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Appendix IV Reporting of Climate Relevant Expenditures
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Appendix V: Disaster Expenditure Reporting Template

59
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NOTES

a

a

attended to at the facility.
During the financial year 202212023 the revenue department collected a total of Kshs. 28,591,400.00 through NHIF claims from patients
attended to at the facility as capitation.
During the financial year 202212023 the Hospital received donations from Global Fund to fight Tuberculosis, HIV and Malaria amounting to
Kshs. 14,822,029.99.
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